

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTIETH LEGISLATURE

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
November 13, 2002 to November 14, 2002

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIRST LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 4, 2002 to June 14, 2003

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
FEBRUARY 13, 2003

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 13, 2003

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Penmor Lithographers
Lewiston, Maine
2003

Sec. 3. Board of missions made members of. The sole member of the Maine Episcopal Missionary Society is the Episcopal Diocese of Maine.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 14

H.P. 819 - L.D. 1116

An Act Regarding University of Maine System Boards of Visitors

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1865, c. 532, §4-B, sub-§5, ¶B, as enacted by P&SL 1997, c. 37, §3, is amended to read:

B. Each board of visitors shall:

- (1) Advocate for the university;
- (2) Raise private funds for the university;
- (3) Advise the head of each campus on community and regional needs; ~~and~~
- (4) Review for final recommendation to the Board of Trustees tuition increases, new academic programs and the 5-year plan of the university; ~~and~~
- (5) Submit an annual report of its activities to the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall submit a copy of the annual report of each board of visitors to the Legislature and to the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over education matters annually in January as part of its report required in the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 10902-A.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 15

S.P. 242 - L.D. 678

An Act To Amend the Charter of the Lubec Water and Electric District

Emergency preamble. Whereas, Acts of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, in 1991 the Lubec Water and Electric District changed its name to the Lubec Water District; and

Whereas, the legislation was passed by the Legislature as Private and Special Law 1991, chapter 14; and

Whereas, the law required that the changes to the name of the district be approved by the voters of the Town of Lubec; and

Whereas, the Town of Lubec never held an election to vote on these matters; and

Whereas, it is imperative to have this legislation take effect as soon as possible; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1951, c. 92, §§1 to 5 are amended to read:

Sec. 1. Territorial limits, corporate name, powers and purposes. The inhabitants and territory within the ~~town~~ Town of Lubec; in the ~~county~~ County of Washington (hereinafter referred to as Lubec); ~~shall be and hereby~~ are constituted a body politic and corporate under the name of Lubec Water and Electric District (hereinafter referred to as district), with the purpose, right and power to take and use water for domestic, commercial, sanitary and municipal purposes including extinguishment of fire, ~~and to make, buy, generate, sell and distribute electricity;~~ and, also, so far as applicable to ~~said~~ these purposes, with the rights and powers conferred upon ~~said~~ Lubec by section 1 of chapter 489 of the private and special laws of 1901; ~~as amended by section 1 of chapter 47 of the private and special laws of 1919, and by section 1 of chapter 91 of the private and special laws of the special session of 1933.~~

Sec. 2. Title of utility properties of Lubec to vest in district. ~~At the time this act takes effect, the~~ The title of Lubec to the entire plant, lands, property and franchises, rights and privileges, including all rents, water rights, dams, reservoirs, pipes, machinery, fixtures, hydrants, tools, apparatus and appliances used in connection with its water business, ~~and also the property, franchises, property rights, privileges and assets, including land, poles, wiring, fixtures, machinery, apparatus and appliances used or capable of being used in connection with maintaining its electrical business;~~ together with all unexpended funds credited to ~~said~~ the water and electric department and all bills receivable for water ~~and electric services~~ service, ~~shall become~~ remain the property of and vest in ~~said~~ the